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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein referred fo as ‘Ind AS financial
statements),

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that

give a true and fait view of the financial position, financial performance including, other

comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with

accounting principles generaliy accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read ‘with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, -
2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. This responsxblhty also includes

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

gstimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate. intermal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy -and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant {0 the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responmbnhty is to express an opmlon on these Ind. AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provxslons of the Act, the accounting and audmng standards and.
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit 6f the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethi¢a] requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement:

An audit involves performing proceduresto obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgmerit; including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS. financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers mternal finandial control
relévant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
in. order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
; 'gsnmates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind
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AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
- Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exp!anati'ons given to us, the

‘tnd AS finanéial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner ‘so required ‘and’ e e

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, its loss including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in eqnity for the year ended on that daie.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As requifed by the Co_'mp_anie_s (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of seciion 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure | a siatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by Taw have been kept by the Company-so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balanice Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash F low Statemerit and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified uridet section 133 of the Act, read with Rule-7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014
and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

() On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2017, from being appointed as-a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrdls aver financial reporting of the
Company and the dperating ¢ffectivenéss of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;’ '

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

, /f{i;‘& 4§ The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
/ j;_,., ---.,“mf;ffg'ﬁ{ld AS financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the Ind AS financial statements;

1l R o

G E(:/;{j Page 2 of 7




SR Batisoirg Co. LEP

Chartered Accountantis

il

1.

iv.

Protection Fund by the Company.

The Company did not have any lornig-term ¢ontracts including derivative contracis for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

i

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note' 44 to these Ind AS financial

statements as to the holding of Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and. December
30, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the petiod from November 8,
2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on our audit procedures.and relying on the management
representation regarding the holding and nature of cash transactions,. including Specified
Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures are in accordance with. the books of accounts
maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management.

For, S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP

Chartered Ac
- ICAl Firm Registiqtion Number: 301003E/E300005 - ' e

ntants

pel.'. A
Partner

Membership Number: 89802
Place of Signature: Pune

A%d}{thi

Date: May 16, 2017
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory Requirements of our
report of even date of Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets; _ _ _
(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. [n our opinion this

. periodicity is reasonable having regards. to the size of the company and nature of the'assets. No-material* R

discrepancies were noticed on such verification;
(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable

properties, included in-property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the reguiremerits
under paragraph 33)c of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company's business does not invoive inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable fo the Company.

(i) According to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies,. firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maihtained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(3iinG@), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable ic the Company and hence not commentedupon,

(v In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given fo us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of sectlon 185.and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. e

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of deposits) rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provision of clause 3V
of the order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintairied by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Gavernment for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the toll coilection services, and are of the apinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made ‘and raintgined. We have not, however, made a detalled
examination of the same.

(vin(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax. sefvice tax, value added
tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
autherities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The provisions relating to custom duty,
excise duty and employees’ state insurance aré not applicable to the Company. . '

(b) According fo the information and explanations given fo us, no undisputed amounts payable in-respect
of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax; \._r_a!u'e added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues were outstanding, at the vear end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payabte.

(¢ According to the records of the Company, the diles gutstarding of income-tax on account of any
dispute, are as follows:

“company has not detaulted in repayment of loans to pank and dues to debenture hplders, The Company
doéiﬁ;?t have any dues payable to the fihancial institution and government,

. 4
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(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were raised. The
Company has not raised any: money by way of initial public offer/ debt instruments and hence not
commented upon.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
~financial statements and according to, the information and explanations given by the management, we
““feport that'no ‘fraud by the campany or no fraud on the company by the officefs and employees of the

Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xD) According to the information and explanations given ty the management, the provisions of section 197
read with Scheduie V of the Act is not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xD
are not-applicable and hence not commented upon..

(xii)In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company-and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactiens with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act; 2013 where applicable and fhe
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented tpon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013,

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-|A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

per Arving thy
Partner
Membership Number: 85802
Place of Signature; Pune
Date: May 16, 2017
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ROHTAK PANIPAT TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controis under Clause (i) of Sub-séction 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) ‘ :

“We have audited the interriat financial controls over financial reporting of ‘Rohtak-Panipat Toltway ‘Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of Match 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Contfols

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria estabiished by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibiiities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including, adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the. Companies Act, 2013,

‘Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibjlity is to express an opinion on the Company’'s internal financial controls over finarcial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appiicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issled by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internat financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the .adeguacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our aydit of internal
financial controis over financial reporting inc!_ude_d obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matefial weakness exists, and festing and evaluating the
design and operating effectivengss of ifiternal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected
depend -on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We helieve that the audit evidence' we have obtained is sufficient-and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financiali reporting.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financiat control over financial reporting is a process designed fo provide reasonabie
assurarice regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted actounting princigles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes thasé policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonabe detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

d@;pp.siﬁg’ns of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

A / ‘_sf"r'le,c’_égf{‘ary__to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
¥ _“pfinciples,: and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

3i{Q\é_f»';fgauth_oris_r;ztibn’s" of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

ey
LAY
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regarding _prevention of timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the jnherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

~~possibitity-of-collusion or-impioper ma nagement override of controls, material misstatements detaerrgrign.. . whi

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls.
over financial reporting fo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadeguaté because of changes in conditions, or that thé degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and. such internal finanicial controts over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company -
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountanis of India.

For, S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered AccBugtants
ICAT Firm Retiskrabop Number: 301003E/E300005

per Arvigd $ethi
Partnem\b‘
Membership Number: 89802
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: May 16, 2017
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Rohtal Panipat Tollway Private Limited
8dlance Sheet as on March 31, 2017
e Noie chsat oo Asat - . Asab
“pasticulars B | Wiaveh 35,2037 | March 31, 2016 | - Aprif 01, 2015
- i : finR im Milliion) | (INR In Milllon) ¢ {INR in silion] -
ASSETS
1 RMon-cuirent assets
{a) Praperty, plant and equipmanis 5 1.33 0.86 1.91
(b} Investment property 6 103 | .3 ey
«{cyintangible assets - © SRS P o [ A DE7305:26 1 Y7958 Y. ¢ AT BI008 |
(d) Financial assets’
(i} Other financla! assets 10 | 171.16 54,74 27.26
(&) Other narn-cutrerit assets 11 | 336 11.50 [ 11.32
Toial Non-current assets 17,572.14 17,_797.84' 17,851.80
2 Current Asseis
{a) Financial Assets
(i) investmepts " - 8 30.04 - 10.80
{7i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 23.38 6B.S7 482.85
{iiiy Other financial Assets 10 92.87 - 3.98
(b) Other currentassets 11 6.39 4.73 4.45
Total Current assets 152.68 73.30 | 502.08
Total Assets 17,726.82 17,871.14 18,353.8%
£QUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
£guity share capital 12 21.86 21,86 71,86
Other equity 13 {2,373.03) (790.18) 771.90
Total equity {2,351.16) {768.32) 793.76
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current Liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 14 9,935.78 i0,082,08 9,934.07
{ii) Other financial liablfities 18 8,158.85 7,508.77 £,830.75
(b} Provisions is 465.69 275.53 131.21 |
Total Nan-cureent Habilities 18,558.32 17,866.38 16,896.03
2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrawings 15 961.00d 555.30 555.30
(i) Trade payables 17 28.05 [ 21.15 1451
{iii) Othef financial liabilitias 1B 513.22 1. 187.07 52.26
(b) Other cutrent Habiiities 19 15.27 9.45 1.90
{c} Provisions 16 pad ! 011, D12
[¥otal Current liabllities 1,517.65 773.08 654.00
" Total £quity and Lisbjlities Toi7, 72882 1 a7,87134 | .. . 1835388
S_ummary of significant atcounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integrat par{ of these financial statemeits
Far and gn behalf of tha Board of Directors of
Bohtak Panipdy Tollway Private Limited Y
3 Vipul Patel
Directar Direcior
DIN No.; p0048318 DIN No.: 06634262
Date: May 16, 2017 Date: Way 16, 2017
Pl_ace: Pune Place: Ahmedabad




Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2017

. ?_a-r.ﬁmisr's T T T o note e, March 21,2017 | March 31,2016,
3 - o Lo i . s i “UE {INRGis Mililion} | - {SMR In Wailiion)
INCOME -
1 Aevenue from operations 20 908.42 805.00
I Other Incomeé : 21 115.69 35.43
1 Total Incoime (I} 1,024.11 840,43
VRIS EypENSES ' o
Operating expenses 22 216.17 205.69 |
Employee benefits expenses 23 21.49 21.75 :
Finance cost: : ) ' 74 2,019.06 1,916.28 :
Depreciatipn and amortizatian 25 277.90 223,14
Other expenses 26 72.25 35.78 i
I Total Expenses 2,606.87 2,402.64
V  Loss for the year (II1V) {1,582.76} (1,562.21) ;
Gther Comprehensive Income ,
‘Other comprehensive income not to be rédlassified to profit of loss tn subseguent periods _!
Remeasurements {[osses)/gain on defined bénefit plans (refer note 32) (0.08} 013 =‘
income tax effect . - - - ;
Vi Total Comprehensive Income for the year: ) (0.08) 0,13 i
Vil Tatal Comprehensive inrome for the year, ek af tax (V) I S b L [5B2.88) - {1,562.08) 5
Earning per share [Value of share INR 10/-] 31
Basic and Diluted (723.90) {714.50) |
Summary of significant accounting pelicies 3 |

The accimpanying notes are an integral part of thesa financial statements.
As per our repori, of even date.

Forand on hahalf of the Board of Directors of

t Tollway Private Limited . },‘
I

m Patel Vipﬁi Patel
L Director
DIN No.: 00048318 DIN No.: DE634262

Date: May 16, 2017
Place: Ahmedabad




A Equity Share Capital

Rohiak Pantpat Tollway Private Limited
statement of Changes in Equity Tor the year anded March 31, 2017

Equity shares of INRLD each issusd, subseribed an fully pald’ L '-;l_"a:;s" g {INR in_MiliiDn}

Asat 1 April 2015 2,186,445 71.85
As at 31 Marih 2036 7,186,445 21.86
At 31 March 2017 - 73,186,845 - 21.86

R I MiHion)

g Other Equity :

Raserves and Surphus’

The accompanying notes are: an jntegral part of these financial stale menis:

As per air report of even date

TRy 16, 2017
Place: Pune

DIN No,; 00048318

pate; May 16, 2017
Place: Ahmedabad

RPN 'Equi'ﬁif'(:_hmpﬁneﬁx of | :
“parijeutass | ompaend Finangial | Securities Fremium. | Retained Earding | ", Total:

_ e tnsteument {rote 13} - fNote13y. | - (Note1d) : B
As at April 1, 2015 ‘ " 2,209,065 195.88 {1,633.02) 771.80
Loss for the year : - - {1,562.21) {1,562.21)
Other camprehénsive income for the year - - 0.13 0.13
‘A ot tharch 31, 2016 : ©.2,308.06 85,881 -~ - {3,39512)] - {790.13}
As at April 1, 2016 2,209,06 195.88 (3,195.12) {r90.18)
Loss for theyear - - (1,582.76) {1,582.76)
Other comprehensive incorme for the year - - {0.08} (0.08)

| A at March 21,2047 I rateE | . - . 1958% - {4,777.58) [2,372.03}

Vipui Patel
Director
DIl No:: 06634262




Rohtak Panipat Toliway Private Limited
Cash Elow Statement For the year ended March 3, 2017

particiars. sarch 31, 2017 | March 31,2036
.o S e {ENR tn Witlios} | (VR In Mbliion)
[A) Cash Flows from opérating activities ’
Met {Loss} before fax {1,582.76) {1,562.21}
Adjustments to récanicile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreclation and amortisation 277.89 . 22315
- tpss of assets die to riots expensed off- - R "
Interest and other borrowing cost 2,015.06 1,916.28
Galn on sale of units in mutual funds {1.83) (20.85)
periodic major maintenarice expense 155.42 127.82 |
Interest income - [0.98}
Unrealised gain on falr value of financial instruments (116.42) {27.48)
Operating profit before working capltal changes 751.37 657.21
Working capital change: '
{Increase}/Decrease in non-current and current financiat asset {52,50) 3.58
{Incréase) I cutrent assets . 0.02 5.93
increase/{Decrease) in non-current financial habilities (2.22) 875
increase in current fiabilities 5.82 755
Increase in non-current and curfent provisions 0.33 0.13
Cash generated from operations 662,42 683.55
Direct taxes paid/{net of iIncome tax refund) 6.88 (6.83)
Net eash flow generated from operating activities [a) 669.29 676.72
{B] Cash flows from investmient activities
rurchase of tangiblé assets (0.€9) {L.04)}
Redemption / {Purchase) of units in mutuat funds {30,00) id.78
Interest income . 0.o8
Gain on sale of Upits in mutual fund 183 20.50
fet cash {used) in / generated from investing attivities (B) {28.86) 31.62
[C} Cash Flows from financing activities
Repayment of non-curtent borrowings’ (20.84) -
Proteeds from terrent borrowings 405.70 -
interest and other borrowing cost paid (1,070.48} (1,122.61}
Nes cash [used} in financing activities Q) {635.62) {1,122.61}
et {decrease) in tash afid cash equivalents [A+B+T) {45.19) {412.28)
Cash and cash equivaients &t beginning of the year ! 68.57 ‘482.85
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of the year 23.38 68.57
Notes: o
{i} Components of cash and cash equivalents {refer noté 9). March 21,2017  March31,2016
{INR [n Million) {INR In Miilion)
Cash on hand 2.93 3.26
Balantes with banks in current accounts 20.45 £5.31
Cash and cash equivalents 23.38 68,57 |
{ii} The cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect iiethsd as per-Indian Accounting Standard -7 “Cash Flow

Staterment™.
(i} Figures in brackets represent outflows,

As per our repart of even date

For.arid o behalf of the Board

Director
BIN No.: Q0048318

Date: May 16, 2017
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 16
Place: Pune

, 2017

of Directors of

QY
Vipul Patel
Director
DIN No.: 06634262

CrABT s



Rohtak — Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

i,

31

y:

Company information:

Rohtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limited {"the Company"} is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under- the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. it's is whole owned
subsidiary of Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited which is listed on Two recognized stock exchanges
in India. The registered office of the company is located at “Sadbhav House”, Opp. Law Garden Police
Chowki, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad — 380 006,

The Company was incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) in January, 2010, for the purpose of

“four laning of Rohtak- Panipat section of NH-10 from KM 63.30 t6 KM :83.50 of NH-1 in the state of

Haryana on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer ("DBFOT") basis, The Company has éntered
into Concession Agreement with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) with a Concession Period
of 25 years w.e.f 09th March, 2010. The Company had received provisional completion certificate
dated 06th January'14 from NHAI The toll collection had commeénced from that date.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
May 16, 2017.

Basis of preparation :

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS}
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accotinting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (tndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016:

For all period up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial
statement in accordance with the Accounting standards specified in Section 133 of the Coripanies Act,
2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ru!e.s,‘2014. {“Indian GAAP”) and other relevant
provision of the Act. These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first
financial statements that the company has prepared In accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note no, E,l
for information of how the transition from previous GAAP to ind AS has affected the company’s
Balance sheet, Statement of profit & loss and Statement of cash flow.

The financial statements have béen prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value {refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments),

e Derivative financiat instruments measured at fair value

" The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest milfion {INR

000,000}, except when otherwise indicated.
Summary of significant accounting policies.
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the company in preparing its financial

statements:

Current versus non-current classification

~ The Company presents assets and ligbilities in the Balance Sheet hased on current/non-current
/,,,ﬂlas&ijjcation. Anasset is current when it is: e
ZAIEC @

o

3 x&\@i}{k‘co be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the narmal operating cycle;
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s Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o Cash or cash equivalent uness restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

~ ltis expected to be settled in the normial operating cycle;

3.2

33

o1t is due to be settled within twelve mionths after theé re'porting'period; or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period. '

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in

cash-and cash equivalents.

Foreign Currencies
The company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional

currency.

Transactions and balanges ‘

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and ligbilities denominated in foreign currericies are translated at the functional

currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such

transaction and on franslation ¢f monetary assets and liabilities dehominated in foreign currencies at

year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of the following:

« Long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisitiori of a fixed asset are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining usefut life of the asset.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exehange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is. recognized to the extént that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account

~contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the

| L .@jeﬂt
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Toll collection income
The revenue is recognized in the period of collection which generally coincide as and when the traffic

passes through toli — plazas.

{i} Gainorlosson sale of Mutuzt Fund ‘ _
Gain orLoss on sale of mutual fund is recorded on transfer of title from the Company, and is determined
as the :diff'erence between the sale price and carrying value of mutual fund and other incidental

expenses.

(i} Dividend
income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby right to

receive is established.
Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement:

a. Construction Revenue:

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract
costs associated with the construction contractare recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by
reference to the percentage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date. The percentage
of completion of a contract is determined considering the proportion that contract costs incurred for
work performed upto the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs

Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of révenue agreed in the contract, the variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments o the extent that it is probable that they will result in
revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured. Contract revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received Or_‘receivabie.

Percentage of completion is determined based on the proportion of actual cost in¢ufred to the total
estimated cost of the project. The percentage of completion method tg applied on a cumulative basis In
each accounting period fo the current estimates of contract revenue and contract costs. The effectof a
change in the estimate of contract revenue or contract costs, or the effect of a change in the estimate
of the outcome of a coritract, is accounted forasa change in accounting estimate and the effect of which
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the charge is made and in
subsequent periods.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revénue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred of which recovery is probable and the related conhtract costs are
recognised as an expense in the period il which they are incurred When it Is probable that total contract

costs will exceed total contract revende, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which such probability occurs

3.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

_impairment losses, if aniy. Such cost comprise the purchase price, borrowing costs if the recognition

%T:@E@%g{\e met and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its#7x
ATy /

~,
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intended use, When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives,

All other expenses on existing property plant and equipment, including day-to-day- repair and
maintenance expenditure are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which
such expenses are incurred.

Derecognition .

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposat & when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(catculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is dé reécognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the written down value method basis
over useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule It to the Companies Act, 2013,
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted
for as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the
remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual value, useful live and method of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, it appropriate.

3.5 Toll collection right arising from service concession arrangement
The Company builds infrastructure assets under public-to-private Concession Arrangements which it
operates and maintains for periods specified in the Concession Arrangements.

Under the Concession Agreements, where. the Company has received the right to charge users of the
public service; such rights are recognised and classified as "Intangible. Assets” in accordance with
Appendix A to Ind AS 11. Such right is not an unconditional right.to receive consideration bécause the
amounts are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised and
classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the Compariy at cost {which is
the. fair value of the consjdération received or receivable for the construction setvices delivered) and is
capitalized when the project is complete in all respects and when the company receives the completion
certificate from the authority-as specified in the Concession Agreement. The economics of the project
is for the entire length of the toad / infrastructure as per the hidding submitted.

Premium Capitalization
The Company has contractual obligation to pay premium (concession fees} to Nationa! Highway
Authority of India ("NHAI"), Grantor, over the concession period. Such obligation has been recognised
~ upfront on andiscounted basis when the project gets completed as per the Concession Agreements as
ﬁ?}?ﬂg@?le assets — Toll Collection Right’ and corresponding obligation for committed premium is.
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3.6

Amortization

The intangible assets which are recognised in the form of Toll right to charge users of the infrastructure
asset are amortized by taking proportionate of actual revenue received for the year over Total Projected
revenue from project to Cost of Intangible assets i.e. proportionate of actual revenue earned for the
year over Total Projected Revenue from the lnta_ngibie assets expected 10 e earned over the balance
concession period as estimated by the management.

As required, total Projected Revenue reviewed by the management at the end of the each financlal year
and accordingly, the total projected revenue is adjusted to reflect any changes in the estimates which
lead to the actual collection at the end of the concession period.

Transition to ind AS
The Campany has elected to continue with the revenue based amortization method for amortization of

its toll collection right as at the date of transition i.e. April 1, 2015.

Intangible assets:

. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment iosses, if any
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

intangible assets with finite lives are amartised over their useful economic lives and assessed far
impairment whenever there js aniindication that the intangible asset may beimpaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period, Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method; as.appropriate, and are treated as changes in. accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit jevel. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to he supportable. if not, the change in
useful life from indefinite to finite ls made on a prospective basis.

Gains. or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference
hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
ctatement of Profit and Loss when fhe asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
software is amortized over management estimate of its usefut life of 3-6 years..
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3.7

- impaired. tf-any indication exists the company estimates the-asset’s recoverable amount.An asset’s” Freiesn e ST

3.8

3.5

_.-as_part of the cost of the respective asset. All other horrowing costs are exp

Transition te ind AS

The Company haselected to continue with the carrying value of all of its int_ang_'ib_1e_ assets as at the date
of transition measured as per the previous GAAP and used that as deemed cost 85 at the date of
transition L.e. Aprit1, 2015.

Impairment— Non-financial assels
The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may. be

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to
sell and itg value in use. The recoverab!ea_mount is determined for'an"individual assef, unless the asset
does not generaié cash inflows that aré largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset ot CGU exceeds 1S recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and 15 written down to its recoverable amount. The impairment 105S is recognised

in the statement of profit and loss.

in assessing value in use, the astimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value usinga
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vajue of money and the risks
specificto the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into.account,
if availabie. if no such transactions can he identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment caleulation on detaited budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s cGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets
and forecasts calculations are g_enéraily covering a period of the concession agreements using long
terms growth rates applied to future cash flows

(ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the CGU level, asappropriaie and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

investment Property _

investment Property Is measured Initially at cost including related tra_ns'actio'n costs. Such cost
comprises the purchase price, horrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investrnent pro'p_erti'es are stated at cost lass accumulated d.ep'reciat%On-and accumulated
impairement, 1055, if any. All da’y‘ﬁto—day repair and maintenance expenditure are charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

An investment propeity is.derecognised on disposal or en permanent!y withdrawal from use or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (_calcu}ated a5 the differerice between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) Is included in the Statement of profitand Loss when the dssetls dere'cog_nised.

Borrowing costs -
Borrowing costs directly attributable 10 the acquisition, construction or production of an asset. that
necessarily takes a substant‘;al _period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized
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occur. Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that company incuts i connection with the

porrowing of funds as defined in indian Accounting stangdard-23 Borrowing Costs:

3 10 Leases
The determinatio
¢ the inception of the lease. The arrangement {s assessed for whether fulfilment of the

ni of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the

arrangement a

arrangement 1 dependent on the use of 8 specific asset or assets orthe arrangement conveys a right

et USE this asset of assets, even ifjt'hét‘ri’ght"is not explicitly specified ian arrangement.”

Company as lessee
A lease is classified at the inception dateasa finance lease of an operaling lease. A lease that transfers

cubstantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 1o-the company is classified a5 3 finance

ledse. An operating lease is a lease othet than a finance lease.

Operating lease payments aré recognised as an operating expense in the Statement of Profit and LOSS
on a straight-tine hasis over the lease term except the case where incremental lease reflects inflationaty

offect and lease expense i accounted in such casé by actual rent for the period.

3.11 financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise o 2 financial asset of one entity'and_ a financial
liability oF aquity instrument of another entity.
a} ginancial assets
i, Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognized initiatly at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable 10 the acquisition of financial assets that are notat fair value through profit of loss are

added to the fair value on initial recognition.

il subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, _ﬁ_’nanc‘i'a[ assets are. classified In three categories:
@ Financial assets af amortized cost
. Financial assetsat fair value through other com_prehensi\fe income {FVTOC\)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit of 1058 (FVTPL)

o Financial assetsat amortized cost
A financial asset i3 measured at amortized cost ifitis hild within @ business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets iri order 1o collect c_o'ntr'actuai cash flows and.the conftr_actua\
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified gates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principa’\ and interest {SPP1} on the princi'pal amount putstanding.

« Financial assets at fair yalue through other compreh‘ensive income:
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if itis held
within a business model whose objective i¢ achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and sefling financial assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on Speciﬁed
P /ﬁ\/: =2 dates to cash flows that aré splely payments of principa’l and interest {sPPl) on the principal

ALY
/”{w e “—‘i;‘;‘g\mount outstanding. Financial assets. included within the FVTOCI category are meas o
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initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair-value movements are recogn_ized in

the other comprehensive income (OCH).

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
FyTPLIs @ residual category for financial assefs. Any fifancial asset which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as: at amortized cost or as FVTOC s classified as at FVTPL.

il ’De-réc'ogn_itioh"qf'ﬁn_'ar‘icia'l Assets
A financial asset is de-recognized when the contractual rights to the cash fiows fram the financial
asset expire or the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received tash flows in full without material delay 10
a third party under a ’pass-‘t'nro_ugh' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
subs.tantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, Of (b} the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially afl the risks and rewards of the asset, but has_transferred control of the assef.

When the Company has transferred its rights 10 receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass—through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the.asset, T transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recopnize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s co ntinuing involvement. in that case, the
Company also recognizes an assoclated fiability. The transferred asset and the associated lability
‘sre measured ona basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Company could be required to repay.

WL lmpairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes 1058 allowances using the expected credit loss (ECl) model for the
financial assets. gxpected credit lossés are ineasured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there hasbeena significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those
are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (oF reversal) that is required to
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized as

an impairment gain or {055 in profit or foss.

b} Financial Liabilities
i. Initial recogniticn and measurement of financial {iabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments: .

All financial labilifies are recognized initially at fair vaiue in case of loan and borrowings and
payable, fair value is reduced by directly attributabie transaction costs.

e 2

2:{'?;;;451. Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
ES R

e

,/'* e “"T}-fe“measumment of financial liabilities depends on their classificatlon, as described below: © A
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& Financial fiabilities at fair value through proﬁt or 1055
Financial liabilities at fair yalue through profit of Joss include financial liabilities designated upon

initial recognition as.at fair value through profit or 105S (FVTPL).

Financial liahilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit of loss ate

designated at the initial date of recognition, and onlyifihe criteriain ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For
liahilities designated as pyTPRY, fair vajue gains/ l0sses O changes in fair value of such [iability are

' recognized_m'th'e-'stateme'nt of profit or loss.

¢ Loansand Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing porrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 1055 when the liabilities
are dere_cognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount of presnjum on acquisition and
‘ fees of cOSLS that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amotiisation is included as finance costs
! in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies 1O porrowings.

iil. perecognition of financial liabilities
A financia! liahility (or a part of 2 financial liability) 1S derecognised from ts balance sheet when
the obligation specified inthe contract is discharged or canicelled or expired.

when an existing financial liability ic replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiauv'modiﬁed, sych an exchange
or modiﬁcation’is’treated as the derecog_nit"\on of the original fiaility and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference inthe respective ¢arrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit

or foss.

c} Detivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative fiancial instruments, such as options and interest rate swaps, 10

hedge its {oreign currency risks and interest raté risks. These derivative contracts does not qualify
for hedge accounting under ind AS 109, financial instrument and are initially recognized at fairvalue
on the dateon which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured atfair
value. Derivatives aré carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liapilities when the fair value is negat‘i\re_._An\,r gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to profit ot loss

d) offsetting of financial ingtruments
Financial assets and financial iiabilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if the Company currently has enforceable legal right 10 offset the recognised amoimts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis; 10 realise the asseis and settle the liabilities
simult'an‘eously.
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3.12 Fair Value Measurement
The company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investmentin Miistual Fund at fair

value at each palance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to selt an asset or paid 10 transfer a ligbility in an orderly
transaction hetween marlket participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset.of transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset of liability, of : o

« Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset Of liahility

. The principal or the most advantageous-market must be accessible by the Company:

The fair value of an asset ora liabilityis measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into dccount a market participant’_s ability to
‘generate economic penefit by using the asset in its highest and best use of by selling it to another
market participant that would use the assetin its highest and best USE, :

The company USes valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient dataare available to measure fair value, maximizing the use ofrelevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categ_o_rized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, hased on the lowest {evel ifiput that is

significant 10 the fair value measurement asa whole:

« Levell-— Quoted {unadjusted) market price In active markets for identical assets of liabilities

. Level 2 ~ Valuation techinicues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 - Vatuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant t0 the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities tiwat are recognised in the financial statements on @ racurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) atthe end of each reporting period. '

The company’s management determines the policies and _procedures- for both recurring fair valué
measurement, such as derivative instruments

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabifities
_-whigh are required {0 he re-measuredor re-assessed as per the company's accounting policies. For this
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analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
. information in the valuation computation 10 cofitracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each agset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change. is reasonable on yearly basis:

For the purpose of fair value dis_él,osures, the Comp'an\,r Has determined classes of assets and liabilities
- on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the: level'of the fair valde - 7~

hierarchy, 385 explained above.

3.13 Employee Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee henefits payable are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are classified as shortterm benefits. Such benefits include salaries, Wages, konus, short
term compensation ete. and the same are recognized as an expense in the s,tatement of profit and loss

in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

b) post-Employment Benefits

{i} Defined contribution plan

The Company’s approved provident fund scheme i$ defined contribution plans. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution _paid/pa\,rable under such schemes. The contribution
paid/payable under the schemes i< recognised during the period in which the employee renders the
rejated service,

(i) Defined benefit plan _

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme is Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the
obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined pased on the actuarial valuation using the
projected Unit credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. in case of fu nded plans, the fair value
of plan asset is reduced from the Bross obligation under the defined henefit plans, to. recognise the
obligation on the net basis.

: Re-measurements, comprising’ of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding

amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabitity), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheetwitha corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCi
iri the period in which they occur. Re-measurements.are not reclassified to ¢ratement of Profit and Loss
in subsequent periods.

Net interestis calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined penefit liability or asset. The
company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and oss:

« Service costs comprising current <ervice costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtallm

non-routine settlements; and

o ‘,‘A,_g_glqet interest expense or income
o -(\_‘.Bi*‘; [i4 ) ‘*'\\‘
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c) Other Employment benefits

. The employee’s compe nsated absences, which is expected 1o be utilized or encashed within the next

12 months, is treated as short-term employee penefit. The. company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects 10 pay as result of the unused entitlement that
has accumuiated ai the reporting date. As per Company’s policy, o |eave are expected 10 be carried

forward beyond 12 month from the reporting date.

© . .g.14ldceme tax
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current income tax assetsand liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered fromor
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with income tax 1961, The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profitor loss is recognised outside profitor loss
{either in other comprehensive income or in equity)- Current income tax are recog‘nised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. -

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance cheet approach. peferred tax is recognized on temporary
differences hetween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amaunts for fiianciat
reporting purposes at the reporting date. :

peferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences excepts when the deferred
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability ina transaction that affects neither
the accounting profit Aot taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for ali deductible temporary differences, ¢arry forward of unused
tax losses and carry forward of unused tax credits to the extentthat it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which those temporary differences, losses and tax credit can be utilized excepls
when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nov taxable

profit ofloss;

A per provision of income tax Act 1961, the Company is eligible for a taX holiday under section BOIA for
a block of 10 gansecutive assessment year out of 20 year beginning of toll operation. The current year
5 fourth year of company's operation and it propose 10 start claiming tax holiday in the subsequent
year only. NO deferred tax {assets OF \iabilities} is recognized in respect of temporary difference which
reverse during, tax holiday period, to the extent such gross'total income is subject to the deduction
during the tax holiday period. peferred taxin respect of timing difference which is reverse after the tax
- _boliday period is recognised in the year in which the timing difference orginate, HOWeVer, the company

/ ,-««j.H}a‘,éﬁgglg;s\[ecognitton of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become probable that sufficienf;
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Rohtak - Panipat Tollway Private Limited

Notes to Financial statement fort

he year ended March 31,2017

taxable profit will be avaifable to.allow all or part. of the deferred tax asset to be: utilizéd. For recognition

of deferred tax, the timing difference which arginate first are considered to reverse first.

The carrying amount. of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re- assessed at each reporting

date and are recognized 10 the extent that it has become probabie that future taxable proflts will allow

the deferred fax asset to be recovered.’

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset.is realized or the lability is séttled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company hias a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. |

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit.or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction eitherin OCl or dlrectly in equity. ‘

3.15 Provisions

/;/mgpmprlate.

i

General

Provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)-as a result of
past eventand it is probable thatan outfiow of résources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.. The
expense refating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,
if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due o the passage of time s recognized
ac a finance cost. Provisionare reviewed at edch balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best

gstimates.

Contractual obligation to restore the infrastructure toa specified level of serviceability

The Company has contractual obligations to maintain the road to a specified level of serviceability or
restore the road to a specified condition before it is handed over to the grantor of the Cancession
Agreements. Such obligations are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required to sattle the obligation at the balance sheet date. The timing and amount of such cost are
estimated and determined by estimated cash flows, expected to be incurred in the year of overlay. The
cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to such obligation. The
unwinding of the discount is expenséd as incutred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
a finance cost. The estimated future costs of such ohligation are reviewed annually and adjusted as

i \
E
£

A
B

¥
ol
£




i

Rohtak — Panipat Tollway Private Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

3,16 Contingent liahilities

A contingent liability is 2 possiblé obligation that arises from. past everits ‘whose existence will be

confirmed by the occurrence of non-gccurrence of one or miore uncertain future events beyond the
contro! of the.Company ora present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable thatan
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where thereisa jiability that cannot be recognized because it.cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does notrecognize @ contingent fiability put discloses its existence in the financial

i statements. Contingent ljabilities are réviewed at each balance sheet date Co "

3.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term

deposits with on original maturity of thiee months or less, which is subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of
cash and short term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered as integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.18 Earnings per share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year ateributabie to ordinary equity holders
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS.is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of ordinafy shares.that wo uld be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares .

into equity shares.

3.19 Segment reporting

Based on management approach as defined in Indian Accounting Standard 108 —~ Operating Segment,

Operating segments aré reported in a mannef consistent with the: internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker for evaluation of Company's petformance.

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements reguires management 1o make estimates,

judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liahiiities and. the accompanying disclosure, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes. that require a material adjustment to
the carfying amount.of assets of liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumpiions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
repo‘r.ting'date,- that have a significant tisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial yeaf, aré described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to

AL

/%@ajﬂet changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. suchchangesare ... ...

,:/ff-,;: _x"réﬂeﬂé@m the assumptions when they occur.
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rohtak — Panipat Tollway Private Limited |
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using yaluation.
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs 1o these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where {his is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgments include considerations of inptts such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions-about these factors could affect the reported fairvalue of financial instruments.

Taxes

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it Is probable that taxable
profit wilt be avaifable against which the credits can be utilised, Significant ma nagement judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits fogether with future tax planning strategies. -

impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calcutation is based on avaiiable data for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget generaily covering a period of the concession agreements
using long terms growth rates and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet
committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performanc_e being tested.
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discourit rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Property, plant and equipment

Refer Note 3.4 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Intangible Assets

The intangible assets which are recognized in the forni of Toll right to charge users of the infrastructure
asset are amortized by taking propartionate of actual revenue recelved for the \,?ear over Total Projected

~ Revenue from project to Cost of intangible assets. The estimation of total projection revenue requires
significant assumption about expected growth rate.and traffic projection £or future. All assumptions-are
reviewed at each reporting date

Provision for periodical Major Maintenance

Provision for periodical Major Maintenance obligations are measured. at the best estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. The timing and
amount of such cost are estimated and determined by estimated cash flows, expected to be inc_url“edin
the year of overlay. Allassumptionsare reviewed at each reporting date.




Rohtak Panipat Toliway Private Limited

Notes to Financial Staterments for the year ended 31st March 2017

% Property, Plant and Eguipments ) {INR In Million)
Particulars. Mac!qmery & Computers  Furniture &-Fixtures Vehicles Office Equipments Total Tangible
Equipments Assets
Caost '
-Asat April 01, 2015 0.45 021 .47 0.69 0.09 1.91
Addition 0.44 0.22 - - 0.11 .77
Disposal 0.78 0.10 0.42 - 0.17 1.47
As at March 31, 2016 0.11. 0.33 0.05 0.69 0.03 1,21
Additign 0.61 - 0.02 - 0.06 0.69
Disposat - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2017 : 0.72 0.33 0.07 -0.69 0.09 1.80
Accumulated Depreciation-
Asat April 01, 2015 - ‘ - - - - -
Charge forthe year 0.07 0.12 0.04 0.09 0.03 035
pisposal - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2016 0.07 0.12' 0.04. 0.09 0.03 0.35
Charge far the year 0.05 0.07 0.00 0.09 0.01 G.22
Disposal - - - - - -
Asat March 31, 2017 n.az 0.19 0.04 .18 0.04 0.57
Net Block
Asat April 01, 2015 0.45 .21 0.47 1.69 0.08 191
As-at March 21, 2016 ' 0.04 0.21 0.01 0.60 - .86
As at March 31, 2017 0.60 0.14 .03 0.51 0.05 1.33
Notes:

1 The Company hds elected to continue with the carrying value for alt of its Property, Plant Equipments a5 recognised.in Its previous GAAF financials, as deemed
cost at thetransition date i.e. Aprit 1, 2015 as per option permitted undef Ind-AS 101 for the first time adaopter.
2 Property Plant and-Equipments has been pledged against Secured borrowings in arder to fulfil the collaterai requirement for'the Lenders. {refer note 14)




~ Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Motes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017

& investment Property {iNR In Million)
particulars Land Total

‘Cost

As at April 1, 2015 1.03 1.03
Addition - -
Deductions - -

As at March 31, 2016 & 103 1.03
Addition ’ -
Deductions. - -

As at March 31_,.2017 1.03 1.03

Accumulated Depreciation

As at Aprii 1, 2015 - .
Charge for the year - .
pisposal - .

-As at March 31, 2016 - “
Charge for the year - _
Disposal = -

As at March 31, 2017 _ . -

Met Book Amount’
As at Aprif1, 2015 ) 1.03 1.03
s at March31, 2016 - ' 1.03 1.03
‘As at March 31, 2017 B 1.03 1.03
Motes: '
1 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Investment praperty, as recog_ni'sed in its previous GAAP financials; 25 deemed cast
at the transition date fie.ppril 1, 2015 3s per option permitted under Ind AS 101 fot the first time adopter.
2 Thereareng ineomearisé from above investment properties. further, the ¢company has not incurred any expeniditire for above properties.
3 The above consist of 2 land which are situated-at Kadi District and Haryana District has been maortgaged against secured borrowingsto fuifil the collateral
requirernent.of lenders. {refer note 14)

4 Tha Company-hasno contractuatobligationsto purchase, constructar develog investment propertiesor for repalrs, maintenance and enhancements.
5 The fair value disclosure for investment property is not presented as. the property,speciﬁcaliy acquired for offering as security for borrowings and based on the
informatlon, there are no materiaj development in the area-where land {3 situated and accordingly, they believe that there is not material difference ini fair
value-and carrying value of property. -
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Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017

7 Intangible Assets:

{INR In Miilion}

. Computer Toli Collection  Total Intangibla
Particulass i
software Rights Assets
Cost
As at April 1,2015 - 18,225.52 18,225.52
Addition 0.27 - 0.27
Adjustment during the year
Foreign exchange difference {refer note 3 below) - 141.55 14155
As at March 31,2016 0.27 18,367.07 18,367.34
Addition - - -
Adjustment during the yeat
Foreign exchange difference {refer note.3 below) - (56.37) {56.37)
As at March 31, 2017 0.27 18,310.70 18,310.97
Accumulated Depreciation i
Asat April 1, 2015 - 415.24 415.24.
Charge for the year 0.03 22276 222.79
Disposal - - -
As at March 31, 2016 0.03 532.00 638.03
Charge for theyear 0.09 277.59 277.68
Disposal - = -
As at March 31, 2017 0.12 915.59 915.71.
Net Boak Amourit
As at April 1, 2015 - 17,810.28 17,810.28
As at March 31,2016 0.24 17,729.07 17,729.31
As at March 31, 2017 0.15 17,395.11 - 17,395.25
Notes: )

1 Toll coliection rights of four faning of Rohtak -Panipat section from Km 63.30 of NH-10 to Km 83.50 on NH-11nthe state of Haryana on Design, Built, Finance,
Operate and Transfer {DBFOT) basis is capitalised whenthe-praject is complete in all respects and when the Company receives the comipletion certificate from
‘the authority as specified in the Concesston Agreement and not on campletion of component basis as the intended purpose of the project is.t0. have the
complete length of the road available for use. Refer note 41 far detail additional discfosure pursuant 1o Appendix - A to Ind AS. 11 - " Service Concession
Arrangements” ('SCA’}.
3 Toll collection Tights alsa inclide present value of premium payable.under the concession agreement of R5.6,248,53 million at the time of receipts-completion
: certificate from the authority. i
e 'ﬁh"{ ‘3 The Company had adepted an option under-Para-464A of AS 11 under, previous GAAP which the company has elected to continue 2s per para D13AA of Ind AS
mﬁf & (:‘ 101 'First time adoption.indian Accounting Standard”. Accordingly the exchange difference arisingan reporting of long-term foreign currency moretary items,
. ‘h/ ﬂ\wﬁ} so far 25 they relate ta the acquisitionaf depreciable asset, is added or deducted from the cost of the asset and shall be amortised over the balance jife of
] Y- 2Rk asset. ' '
i} vEdll collection right has been pledged against secured borrowings in order to fulfil the collateral requirement of the Landers.{refer note 14)
207k Remaining Amortisation periad for the Toll collection rights at the end of the reporting period is 19:06 years (March.31, 2016:20.06 yearsand April 3,
z;«fOlS: 21.06 years).
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Motes to Financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

B Investments " March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
1NR In Million} (IR In Million} {iNR 1n Million)

_{inNRinMiliion) _ (NRinMillion) UREDZES
Unquoted
[nvestments carrled at fair value through profit o7 joss
11,313.86 unlts {March 31, 2016 Nil and April 1, 2015 Nil units} in UT
Floating Rate Fund - Direct Growth
Nil units (Marchiill,‘llolﬁ: Nil and Aprif 3, 2015: 100,000 units} in PNB Fixed ) S R
Maturity - Regifar Plan Growth o )

30.04 - -

Total 30,04 - 10,80
Ageregate amount of Unquoted Investments 30,04 - 10.80
Fair value disclosuges for financial assetsare given in Note 28
g Cash and Bank balance . March 31, 2017 March 33, 2016 April 01, 2015

(INR In Millfon). _ (INR1n Million)  (INR In Million)
Cash and Cash Equivalent .

Cash on Hand 2,93 326 £.16

Balance with Dank
in Current Accountst . 20,45 65.31 476.69
Total 23.38 68.57 452.85

i Balance with bank includes balance of Rs.17.60 million {March 31, 2016: Rs.0.86 million, April 1, 2015: Rs.3.86 million) iying in the
Escrow Accounts which is usable-as per terms &f borrowings arra ngement with the lertders,

10 Other financiat assets March 31, 2017 farch 31, 2016 April 04, 2015
{INR In Miflion) {INR In Million} _(INR In Millian)

Hon current

Security depasits 0.01 0,01 0.01
Derivatives not designated as hedges 171.15 54,73 27.25
Tota! . 171.16 54.74 3726
‘Current ' .
Toli receivable, 1.18 - 3.98
recelvable from NHAL - Toll Suspension (refer note 1helow) §1.65 - -
Total 92.87 - 3.98:
264.03 . 54,74 31.24
Note:

1 Pursyant to demonetisation, concessioning authorities had annoufced suspension of toll collection at ali roads from November 09, 2016
\intil December 2, 2016. Based on subsequent notification and provisions of coricession agreement with the refevant authorities, the
Company has dlaimed and recognised revenue of R5:126.04 Millions during the year, Ag at March 31, 2017, the company fas received
Rs.34.35 million against such claini from.NHAI and the batance still receivable.

2 Falr value disciosures for financial assets are given in Note 28

11 Other Assets March 31,2017 March 31,2016  April 01,2015
{INR in Million) (iNRIn Million) __{INR In Million}

Non Current

Tax credit receivable 336 5.03 1127
advaice Income tex {net of provision} - 6.87 0.05
Total 3.36 11.90, 11.32

Ciirrent Assets '
Prepaid expenses : 5.83 4.63 . 4.30
Staff Advances : - 0.10 0.03
_Advances to Siippliers 0.56 - 0,12
e Total " 539 4.73 4.45

ZABOL g
B g S




Rohtak-Panipat Tolfway Private Limited
Wotes to Fihanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

12, Equity Share Capital March 31, 2017 . March 31, 2016° April 1; 2015
Mo, of shares  (INR In Million)  Mo..of shares  (INR fri Million)  No.ofshares  (INR in Milllon)

Authorized Share Capital

Fuity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000,000 50,00 5,000,000 50.00 5,000,000 5000
5,000,000 50,00 5,000,000 50.00 5,000,000 50.00-
Issued, Stibscribed and fully paid up - )
Edultty Shares of Rs 10 each 2,186,445 2186 . 2Z;1BR445 21,86 2,186,445 21.86
] 2,186,445 21.86 2,186,445 186 2,186,445 21.46

{3) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the‘he_ginnlng and at the end of the reporiing period

Particulars, March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Apiil 1, 2015

Mo, of shares (IR In Miffion) No.ofshares  {INR[n Million)  No. of shares’ {INR In Milfion)
At the beginning of the year 2,186,845 21,86 2,186,445 21.86 2,186,445 21.86
Add: Issue during the year - - - . - ] - . -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,186,445 21,86 2,186,445 21.86 2,186,445 21.86

{b} Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares:

The Company has ene dass of shares referred {o as equity shares havinga par value of Rs.1§ each. Each shareholder is ertliled ta one vote per share held. In the event
of liquidaticn of the Company, the holdess of equity shares shall he entltled to receive any of the residuat assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, The amount distributed will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders,

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the amount of per share dividend récognized 2 distributicns to equity shareholders was INR Nil million {31 March 2016 INR il
miilion}

{c) Share held by holding Company:
Cut of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding compariy, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/assoclates are as below:

March 31, 2017 March 31,2016  April 1, 2015
(INR In Million}  {INR In Biltion)  {INR tn Million)

Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited - Halding Company

2,186,445 {March 31, 2016: 2,186,445.and Aprif 1, 2015: 2,186,445) eguity shares 21.86 21,86 21,86
{dy Numbér of Shares held by each sharehaider holding more than 5% Shares i the company )
Particulars - March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
No. of shares % of No..of shares: % of - HNo. of shares % of
sharehalding sharehalding ' shareholding
Eruity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited and its 2,186,445 160% 2,186,445 100% 2,186,445 100%
nominees

~ Asper the-records of the company, including its registers of shareholders/member and other dedlaration received from sharehioldets regarding benefidal interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

13 Other Equity March 31, 2007 March 31, 2016
(INR In Million)  {INR In Million}

13.1 Equity Component of Compound Financlal Instrument - Sub Ordinate debts {refer note below & 34)
Balarice al the beginning of the year 2,208.06 2,209.06

Balance at the end of the year Tokal 2,200.06 2,208,06

13.2 Security Premiom Reserve .
Bafance atthe beginnir_lg of the year 155.88° 155 88
Balznce at thi end of the yéar Tatal . 195.88 195,98

13.3 {Deflcit} In statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year (3,195.12) {1,633,04}
Add: loss for the year {1,582.76) 11,562.21)
Add / {Less); Other Comprehensive Incomeé for the year (D.OE)' 0,13
Balance at the end of the ysar Total (4,777.96) _ {3,195.12)
Total {13.1+13.2+13.3) (2,373.03). (790.18)
Note -

1. The Project of the Company has been funded through sub ordinate debt of Rs: 2,208.06 million from the Sponsors in acrordance with Spoasor Support and Equity
Contribution Agreement / Sponsos Undertaking, Such sub ordinate debts is censidered as sponsor's contribution to ensure promotors commitment for the project, Sub-
ordiriate debt js interest free and shali be repayable at the end of the concession period or earlierat the option of thé company In accordance with erms of confract.,

Under previous GAAP, Sub-debts loan received from promotors as-promoter's contributions disclosed under long tetm borrtwings, Undér ind AS, ‘the Interest free sub
dabts '!oar_las prometer's contributions considered as equity component of compound financial instrument and classified as other equityy based on tefms of contract.
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Aohtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

14 Non-Current Borrowings March 31, 2017 Match 31, 2016 April 01, 2015,
{INR Tri Million} {ENR Iri Million} {iNR In Million)
Setured*
Term Loan from Banks
indian Rupee 5,505.10 6,516.00 6,511.21
Farelgn Cuirency 2,421,31 2,467.00 2,312.18
Loan from financial instituiion 1,108.62 1,110,593 1,110.68
B B . Total ) 10,035.03. . .16,093.93 9,934.07
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowing* {refer note 18} 101.25 11.85 -
Total Non Current Borrowings ] 9,933.78 10,082.08 9,934.07

# Includes the effect of transaction cost paid to Lenders on upfront basis.

{t

—_—

Nature of security:

The detalls of Security in respect of Term loans are as under:

1 first mortgage and charge on alf the Company’s immovable {Investment) properties, both present and future, save @hd except the Project
2 first charge on ali the Company's tangible moveable assets, including moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and
accessaries, furniture; fixtures, vehicles and all other movablé assets, both present and future, save and except the Project Assets;

3 first charge over all accounts of-the Company including the Escrow Account.and the Sub-Accounts {df any accountin substitution therecf)
that may be operied in accordance with Common Rupee Loan Agreement and the Supplementary Escrow Agreement, or any other Project
Documents including but not limited to DSA and MR and all funds from time to time deposited therein, including those drising out of
realisation of Receivable and all Permitted Investments or other securities représenting all amounts credited thereto.

4 first charge on all intangibles assets of the Company including but not limited to goodwil!, rights, undertakings and uncalled capital present
and future exciuding the Project Assets.

5 first charge on assignment by way of securlty in:

- allthe right, title; interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in the Project Documents; o s : i

. theright, title and interest of the Company in, to and drider ail the Clearances;

- allthe right, titie, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in any fetter of credit, puarantee including contractor
guarantees and liquidated damagas'ahd performance bond provided by any party to the Project Documénts; :

- allthe right, title, interest, benefits, ctaims and demands whatsoever of the Company under all Instsance Cantracts.

& pledge of equity shares heid by Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Ltd. aggregating to 51% of the pajd up and voting equity share capital of the
Company fora perfod upta repayment of entire borrowings.

7 the aforeésaid mortgages, charges, assignments aid guarantees and the pledge of equity shares as-stipulated in paragraph 6 above shali in.all
respects rank pari-passu intet-se amongst the Lenders, in accordance with the Common Loan Agreement, without any preference or priority
to one over the other or others; 1

{if) Terms of Repayment of Loans:
{a} indian Rupee Term Loans from Banks arid financiat institution:
The Princlpal Amounts of the Loan to each of the Lenders shall be repayable in 43 structuréd quatterly instalments on the last-day of each
quarter, commencing from the expiry of monotarium pefiod (22 guarters from initial drawdown date Ee. March 30th, 2011}, The last date of
instalment is March 31, 2027. '
Term ioans carry interest at bank base rate plus 200 basls point as spread Le: 11,60 to 1210 per cent per annum as on March 31, 2017.
{b) Forelgn Currency Loan: '
Forelgn Currency loan from Bank shall be repayable.in 6 unequal semj-annual instalments, First repayment shall be made from the half year
anniversary falling immediately after the date on which any scheduled repayment is made to the Rupee Lenders In accordance with the
Common Rupee Loan agreement {scheduled repayment date of rupee foan s September 28, 2016). At the end of payment of 5 unequal semi-
annual instalments; the Company propase to convert balance loan amounting to USD 37.83 Million into a new Rupee Term Loan. The
Coimpany pays interest-at LIBOR plus 4.70 basis points per annum on the foreign cursency loar.

{iii} Defaults and breaches: ‘
Non current. borrowings contain debt covenants relating to debt-equity ratio and debt service coverage: ratio. The Comipany has not been:
able t&' meet oiie of the covenants viz debt service coverage ratio as at the end of the yeat. in th opinion of the management, this does not

have any financial.or other implication as regards these financial statement.
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Notes to Financiai Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Current Barrowings

March 31, 2017
{INR In Million}

March 31,2018

April 01, 2015
{INR In Million)

Loans Repayable on Demand
Refated parties {unsecured)* (refer note 2a4)

961.00

{INR In Million}

555,30

555.30

Total

961.00

-555.20

555.30

*Loan {s repayahle or derhand / calt notice fror the lerider and it carry interest of 11.15% per annum

Provisions

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 01, 2015

R o L {INRIn Millfon) (INR In Miilion} {INR In Million)
Nan Cufrerit ' '
Provision for employee benefits-gratuity (refer note 32) 0.60 0.27 0.15
Provision for periodical major maintenance [refer note 33) 465,00 275,26 131.06

Tatal 465,69 '275.53 131.21
Current
Provisian for employee benefits-leave encashment 0.12 011 0.12
Total 012 0.11 012
Trade Payables March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
{INR In Million): {INR In Millfon} {INR In Million)
Trade Payables* (refer note 34) 28.05 21.15 14,51
Total Z8.05 7115 14.51

18

*as per infarmation available with the Campany, there aré no Micro, Small and Meditm Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Smalt and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 to whom the Company owes dues on. dccount of principal amount together with interest and

accordingly no related additional disclosure have been made,

‘Other financiak liabilities -

Nan Current
Premium Qbligation payabie to NHAI
Less: Current Maturity of Premium Obligation

Deferred Premium Obligation (refer note 1 below}
Intérest Accrued on Deferred Premium Obligation [fefer note 1 below)

Tatal Non €urrent

Current .

Current maturities of non-cufrent horrowings (refer note 14)
Current maturities of premium obligatian (refer above)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Interest accrued and die on Barrowings

Employee emoluments payable

Deferred-option premium

Security deposit

Payable towards utility shifting work {refer note 34)

Others non trade payabie
) Total Current

Total

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
{INR n Millilon) {INR In Million) (INR In Millian)
6,630.42 6,510.50 6,378.51
{89.15) (10.00} “
6,541.27 6,500,50 6,378.91
1,440.18 929,25 . 433.13
177.40 79.02 18.71
8,158,85 7,508.77 6,830.75
101.25 11.85 -
89.15 10,00 -
50.14 46.97 41.03
264,33 109.92 - 44.88
1.20 125 1.27
4.86 4,86 5.01
0.62 035 0,07
156 1.56 -
0.11 0.31 -
513.22 187.07 92.26
8,672.07 7,695,84 6,823.01

Mnte:
1 As per the Minlstry of Road Transport & Highways policy of NHAL company is liahle to make payment of interest on Deferment of Pramidmi

19

at Bank Rate+ 2% p.a.which is charged to statenient of profit & loss accolint for the year and obligation on the same has been recognised as

fiabilities. Premium, obligation under the Concession Agreement has heen deferred by NHA! vide Hs sanction Jettet dated June 10, 2014,

According to the terms. of the sanction letter company shall pay entire deferred premium of INR 5,753.20 Mfion and interest thergon no

later than one.year ariar to the expiry of the concession period. Amiount ‘of premium obligation which has not been. deferred are payable in

unegual mohthly instalments, in-terms of the sanction letter; during the concession period,

Fair valiie disclosures for financial instruments are given in Note 28

Other Current Liahility

Statutory dues
Advance from Customers

Total

March 31, 2017 Match 31,2016,  April 01, 2015
{INR In Miltian) (NRIn Million)  {8NR i Miftion)
14,82 8.80 1.90

0.45 0.65 -
15.27 1.90

9.45
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Rohtak-Panipat Tolliway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

: .w.,_\?zae 'Qcarjon Fees

20 Revenue from operations March 31, 2017
{INR In Miilion) [INR In Million)
Revenue from Toil Collection# 908.42 ..+ BD5.00,
Total 908.42 805.00

H Pursbaint to demaonetisation, concessiohing authorities had announced suspension of toll collection at all roads from November 09; 2016
untll December 2, 2016. Based on subsequent natiflcation and provisions of concession agreement with the refevant authaorlties, the
Campany has claimed and recognised revenue of INR 126.04 Millions during the year which is actounted in revenue from toll collection.

21 Other Incarhe

. Intergst Income:
""" " on income tax refund
on fixed deposit with banks
inceme o change In fair valuation of financial instruments
Gain on sale of mutual funds.
Miscellaneous Income
Total

22 Operating Expenses
Tol{ plaza and road aperations & maintenance expenses {including payment to sub contractess}

Periadic majer maintenance expense (Refer Note 33)
Power and fuel
Security expenses
Total

23 Employee Benefits Expenses

tataries, wages and other allowances (refér note 32)
Contribution to provident fund and other fund (refer note 32}
Gratuity expense (refer nota 32} -

Staff welfare expenses

24 Finance Cost

Interest Expenses on;
Rupee Term foans
forelgn Currency Loan
short Term Borrowings {Refer Note 34).
Defermient pf Premium Obligation
Unwinding of discount on provision of MMR (refer note 33)
Unwindirig of discount on NHA! Premium {refer note 18] -
Amortisation of processing fees
Other borrowing costs
Totat

25 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 5)
Arriortization on intangible assets (refer note 7}
Total

26 Other Expenses

Rent (refer pote 34 and37)

Repairs and mialntenance (refer note 46)

tnsurance

professtonal fees:

Commurication Expense

Travelling and caiveyance

Cash Collectiob charges

Avditors' remuneration {Refer note below)

Loss of assets including cash balances {refer note 46}
Miscelfaneous expenses

Total

Payment to Auditors:

o,
-Q?E\ Statutory audit fees

March 31, 201.':‘
[INR In Million}

March 31, 2016
{ENR In Aillion}

o4t

R T

{INR I Mdillion]

- G54
112,14 13.06
1.89 2090
1.31 0.49
115.6% 35.43
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{iNR In Million) {INR In Million]
43,21 56,12
155.42 12782
7.19 9.86
10.35 11.89
216.17 205,69
"March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{INR In Miflion) {INR I Millien)
16.68 16.99
1.02 0.88
0,25 0.25
354 3.63
21.49 21.75
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

{INR in Million}

904.85 924.24

148.05. 132.64.

100.4% 72.27

109.31 67.0

34.41 16,38

£40.00 62772

18.31 18.31.

6372 57.71

2,019.06 1,516.28
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{INR In MiHion) {INR In Million}

022 - 035

277.68. 222.79

277.90 223.14
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{INR En Million} [INR tr Rdillion)

1.12. 1.03

4865 5.45

5.53 501

14,02 18.87

0.28 0.45

037 0.18

133 1.84

0.28 0.59

- 2.06

0.67 0.30

72,25 35.78

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

{iNR In Millich} {INR tn Million)
.28 0.52
. 0.07
0,28 0.59




Rohtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limited
‘Maotes ta Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

27 Income tax kS )
The miajor compofent.of [ncome tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 are as under:

a} Profit and loss section . March3%,2017 March 31, 2016

{[INR In Million) {INR In Million)
Current tax ’ - -
Deferred tax : - -
Total : ) - -

b} Reconciliation of tax exﬁense and the accounting profit multiplied by dorrastic tax rate:

. : March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{(INR In Million) {INR In Million)

Accounting profit before tax {1,582.76) {1,562.21}
Statutbry incomee tax rate 30.90% 30.80%
Expected income tax expenses (489.07} {4832.72)
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expenses to reported incomé tax expenses
Tak losses not recognised due to absence of proba ble certairity of reversal {refer note below)) 489,08 482.66
Other non-deductible expenses - 0.07

At the effective income tax rate of Nil (March 31, 2016: Nil} : - -

B) Deferred fax ) {INR In Millian}
Balance sheet Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars - —
y March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1,2015 156-17 15-16.
impact of fair valuation of investmant (0.01) ' - {0.25) 0.01 {0.25)
Impact of fair valuation of derivative contract (52.88} (16.91} (8.42} 3597 8.49
Expenditure allowable on payment hasis (refer note below) 52.80 16.51 2.67 (35.99} {8.25)

Unused fosses available for offsetting against future taxable incormhe (refer
note Below) : - - - - -

Defatred tax expense/{income} : - -
Net deferred tax assets_/[liahilities) ‘ - - ..

MNotes
1 As 2 matter of prudence, the:compa ny has recognised deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax iosses fn the books to the extent of
deferred tax liabllity balance as it is rict orokable that future taxable profit will be avatlable against whichthose temporary differences, josses and tax credit against which deferred
‘tax assets can be utilized, Accordingly, 5,149.20 INR miflion (31st farch 2016; 4,644.06 millian and April 4, 2015 INR 4,211.43 miliion} has not recognised as deferred tax assets in
ﬁ%ﬂf—“ﬂhe books as at reporting date, S :
LIS

ARy,




Rohtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Mptes to Financial Statements §or the year ended March 31, 2017

28 Disclosure of Financial Instrumeriis by Category
{INR tn Million}

Mote March 31, 2017 : ) March 31, 2016 ‘ April 01, 2015 _
o, RAPL  evrom  Amortzed ey mvoo Amortized o puypq  Amortized
) j cast cost cost
Financial asset
Investment in mutual fund ) 30.04 - ’ - - - - 10,80 - -
Cash and cash equivalent 9 - - 2338 - - 68.57 - - 482 .85
Otherfinancial assets .10 1715 -y .. 9288 5473 - - 001 . . 2725 .. - 3.99 B
Total Finandal Asset . 20119 - 116.26 54.73 - 68.58 38.05. - 4B6.84
Financial liabilities
Non current borrowings 14 - - 9,933.78 - - 10,082.08 - . 9,934.07
Loans Repayable on Demand 15 - . 951.00 - - 555.30 - - 555.30
Trade Payables 17 - - 28.05 - - 2115 - - 14.51,
Financial Liabilities 18 - - 8,672.07 - - 7,695.84 - - 6,923.01
Total Financial Liabliities - - "19,594.90 - - 18,354.37 . - 17,426.89

29 Fair valiie disclostres for financial assets and financial liabilities
Set out below is a comparison, by tlass, of the cartying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that are réasonable approximatioris of falr values:
(INR In Miltian)

Miarch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Pamc_ular Carrying. Fair value Carrylng Fair value carrying Fair value
amount amount ) amount N
Financial Assets
Investment in Mutual Fund 30.04 30.04 - - -10.80 10.80
Derivatives not designated as hedges 17115 17115 54.73 54,73 27.25 27.25
Total Financial Assets o 201,19 201,19 54,73 54.73 38.05 38.05
Financial fiabiities
Other Financial Liabilities - Premium Obligation 6,630.42 7,197.25 6,510,50. 6,510.50 6,378.91 5,979.67
Total Financial Liabilities _ _ 6,630.42 7,197.25 651050 651050 6378.91  5,979.67
Notes:

a, The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liahifities measured at amortised cost in the financlal statements are a reasonable approximation
of their fair value since the Company dogs not anticipaie that the carrying amounts weuld be significantly different from the values'tHat would evantually
be recelved or settled,

b. The carrying value of Company's interést-bearlng borrowings are reasonable approximations of fair values as the barrowing carry floating interest rate.

c. The fair value of the financial assets and fiabilitias is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged'in a current transaction
between willing parties, other'than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and assumpticns were used to estimate the fair values:

- The Company has entered into derivativé fibancial instruments with Bank. Interest rate swaps, option.contract are valued usihgvaldation techniques,
which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most frequiently applied vatuation techniques includes forward pricing and swap models, using
present value calculations. The modes incorporate various inpits included currency spotrate, risk free interest rate of respective currency, c_u'rrency
yolatility and intérest rate curves, The derlvative instrument fair value.is arrived using mark-to-market valuation as at March 31, 2017,

- The fair value of Premium Cbligation is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates as per’ RBl Bank rate + 2%.

30 Fair vatue hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurément hierarchy of the Compariy's:assets and liabilities:
Cuantitative digclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets as at March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015
{INR in Miljion)

Note Faif value measurementusing’ _
No. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Assets mieasured at fair value '
Fair value through proflt & loss
investmant in Mutual Fund 7 30.04 - 10,80
Perivatives not designated as hedges 5 171.15 54,73 27.25

Iiabillties measured at falr value
Assq;gjor_ygﬁl_ch fair values are disclosed
e :

gﬁﬁ@cl Liatilities - Premlum Obiigation 14 7,197.25
[ o, Y
 hefie bee\ﬁ\ﬁ?&_t,r,_ sfars between level 1 and Jevel 2 during thé years. -




Rohtak-Panipat Toliway Private Limited
Motes +o Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

31 Earning Per Share (EPS):
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2017 narch 31, 2016
{INR in Million) (IR In Million)
Net (Loss) attribitable to Equity Sharehdlders: " {1,5B2.76) (1,562.21}
Nuimber of equity'shares at the end of the year 2,186,445 2,186,445 :
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and dijuted EPS ' 2,186,445 2,186,445 !
Nominal vajue of equity shares . 10 : a0 |
Losspershare .o oL S m e T o (T390 . {714.50) -

32 Employee Benefits Disclosure;

A Defined Contribution Plans: ) _ _ _
Arnount of Ré. 1.01 milllon (March 31, 2016: Rs. 0,88 miilion) Is.récognised as expanse and ingluded in Note No. 23 "Empicyee Benefits

Expenses"
March 31, 2017 karch 31, 2016
(INR In Nilllion) {INR in Mililon}
Contribution to Provident Fund ' 0,99 0.85
Contribution to Benevolent Fund : 0.02 0.03
Total 1.01 0.88

B Defined benefit plans - Gratuity benefit plan: :
The Company has a Gratuity benefit plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on the
termination of his empicyment at 15 days salary {last draw salary} for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded. The present
value of obligation {n respect of gratuity Is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Project Unit Credit mMethod as prescribed by
the Indian Accounting Standard = 9. Geatuity has been recognized in the financial statement as per the details given below:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{INR In Million) {INR In Mitiion}

Defined beneflt obligations as at beginning 6f the year - A ' 0.27 0.15
Cost.charged to statement of profit and loss

Current service cast : ' 0.23 0.24

Interest cost 0.02 . 0,01
Sub-total inciuded in statement of profit and loss - B 0.25 0.25
Remeasurement gains/{losses) in other comprehensive income

Actuarial Loss/{Gain) due to change in flnancial assumptions ‘ D.02 {0.04)

Actuarial Loss/(Gain') due to change in demographic assumptions : - -

Actuarial Loss/(Gain) due to eXpEriente 0.06 {0,09)
Sub-total included in 00 - € . 0.08 ' {0.13)
Defined benefit obligations as at end of the year {A+B+C) 0.60 0.27

The principal assumptions used in detérmining above defined benedit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

tiarch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Biscount rate 7.05% 7.60%
Salary Growth Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 15% at younger 15% at younger
ages reducing to 3% ages reducing to 3%
at older ages at older ages

Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

MMortality rate, X
Martallty (2006-08)  Mortality (2006-08)

A guantifative sensitivity analysts for significant assimption is as shown below:

Particulars _ March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Sensitivity level . AP
] : (INR In Millian)  [INRID Million)
Discount rate 0.50% increase {0.01} {0.01).
0.50% decrease p.03 0.02
Salary Growth Rate 0.50% incréase 0.03 0.02
0.50% decrease (0.0} (0.03)

Withdrawal rate 10% increase - {0.01) : 0.08
o 10% decrease 0,02 0.08
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taturity Profile of the Defined Benefit Obligation
As at March 31, 2017

INRin. Mitllon %
2018 ' 0.00 0.29%
2019 0.00 11,20%
2020 - 0.05 9,06%
2021 0.06 10.41%
2023 . Q.07 11.59%

2023 - 2027 0.41 BB.46%

As at March 31, 2016

. INR in Million _ % _
2017 0.00 0.35%
2018 0,00 0,29%
2019 0.00 1.13%
2020 0.05 18.71%
2021 0.03 . 12.03%
2022 - 2026 0.1% 67.48%

The average duration of the deflined benefit plan obligation at the end of the end of the reporiing period is 18,43 years {March 31, 2016
19.22 years).

Other employee benefit:
Salaries, Wages and Borus include INR 0.54 millien {Previous Year INR 0.50 miliion) towards provision made as per actuai basis in respect of
accumulated leave encashment/compensated absences, bonus and leave travel aliowance.

Disclosure related to Perlodical majer maintenance provisions:
Pravision for major maintenance in respect of tali roads maintained by the Company under service concéssicn arrangements and classified,

as intangible assets represents contractual obligations to restera an infrastructure facility to a specified level of serviceability in respect of
such asset. Estimate of the provision is measured using a number of factors, such as contractual requirements, road usage, expert opinions
and expected. price levels. Because actual cash flows can differ from estimates due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations,
prices and -conditiens, and can take place miany years in future, the cafrying amounts of provision is reviewed at regular intérvals and
adjusted to take account of sisch chianges, Below is the movement in provisicn for the year:
' March 31, 2017

. {INR In Millon)

Carrying amount as at April 01, 2016 275.26.

Add: Provision made during the Year 155.42
Add: increase during the year In the discounted amount due to passage of time ) 34.41 |
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2017 465.09
Expected timé of outflow In the year 2018-2019

Related Party Disclosures!
Related party distinsures as requiréd under the ndian Accounting Standard ~ 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” are given befow:

Name of Related Partles apd Nature of Relationship ¢

Description of Relationship Narie of the Related Party

Ulkimate Holding Company Sagbhav Engineering Limited {SEL)
Holding Company sadbihav Infrastructure Project Ltd {SIPL)
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B

Transactians with Related Partles during the Year: ‘March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{INR tn Million} {INA: v Mitlion)
Shor¢ Tefm Borrowings recelved
SIPL 405.70 -
Shart Term Borrowings repaid (including Interest paid} :
SIPL 15.00 -
interest an Shart Term Borrowings
SIPL : 100,41 72.27
Operations and Maintenarice Setvices Availed
SIPL _ ‘ _ 3345 33.08
Méﬁ_ﬁéerﬁent Support Services Avdtled ' e ’ ’ i S o SR
SiPL - 13,67
Rent Expenses
SEL . 1.03 1.03
Services availed for Utility, Electric Pole shifting, EPC variations & Road Repalring {net)
SEL ' - 413
Reimbursement of Expenses
SIPL 0.53 0.44
Balances outstanding as at March 31, 2017 ¢ Miarch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
{INR In Million) {INR tn aillion) {INR tn Million)
Other Equity (Sub-ordinate debts }
SIPL 2,209.06 2,209.06 . 2,209,06
Short Term Borrowings outstanding {Including interest payahle) ‘
SIPl. 1,146,28 665.22 600.18:
Recelvable/_[Payable) towards Utility Shifting
SEL (1.56) {1.56) 0.12,
___Receivable/(Payable) towards EPC cost; Operation & Maintenance B 7
5iPL {16.72) {9.20) {7.51)
h_ent and Reimbursement of Exkpenses

D
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SEL . 0.16 0.08 =

Termis and conditions of the balance outstanding:

1. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.. Qutstanding
balances 4t the year-end are unsecured and interest free éxcepts shost term loan and settlement occurs in cash as per the terns of the
agreement,

2. Loansin INR taken from the related party carrles interest rate 11.15% (March 31, 2016 : 11.15% to 11.75% & April 1, 2015 : 11.75%}

3. The Company has riot provided any commitment td the related party as at March 31, 2017 {Marcti 31, 2016 INR Nil and April 1, 2015: [NR
i) .

Contingent liabilities March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
{INR In Miltion) {iNR Tri Million)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Income tax¥ 13.73° 13,73

* Toward Income tax demand from authorities for ificome earned during project implementation period for FY 2012-13. in respect of said
matter, the Campany has preferred appeal with Tribunal. The matter Is pendiig with Tribunal as at reporting date,

Segment Reporting

The: eperating segment of the company is identified to be “BOT", as the Chief Cperating Derlsion Makér (COOM] yeviews husiness
performance at an overali company level as one segmeént and hence, does not havé any additional diselosures to be made under ind AS 108
Operating Segrients. Further, the Company alse primarily operates under one geographical segmant namely jndia.

Operating Lease:

The Campany has taken office space on operating lease basis. There are ho sub-leases and the ledses ard caricellable in nature at any point

oftime by either of parties, There Jare no restrictions imposed under the [ease arrangements. There are neither-any contingent rentnor any
escalation clause in the lease arrangements, During the \,;ear, the Company has incurfed INR 1,03 million {March 31, 2016: IMR 1.03 millian)




Rohtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

38

fa)

' estat_:ﬂlq‘fi&eu" risk matagement policy. Details of the hedge & unhgdged position of the.Company given in Note no, 33

Financial instruments risk management ohjectives and pelicies
The Company's pringipal financlal Habilities comprise borrowings and trade & other payables, The main purpose of these financial liahifities is to

finance the Company’s operations and 1o support its operations. The Company’s principal ﬁnancla1 assets include Investments, other receivables
and cash and bank balance that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose i to market risk, credit risk and kquidity risk. In order to minimise any adverse: effects on thé financial
petformanie of the company, dérivative financial instruments, such as forelgn currenty option contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign
currericy exposures and interest ‘rate. swaps to hedpe certain variable interest rate exposures. Derivatives aye used exclusively for hedging
purposes and not as trading / speculative instruments. '

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for-the establishment and. oversight of the Company's risk: management framework. Risk

management systems are reviewed ;jerio’dicaily}' to reflect changes i market coriditiofis and the Company’s activities. The Board-of Directors: - -+ - "o winh

oversee compliance with the Company’s risk management polities and procedures, and reviews the risk mahagement framewark.

Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three fypes of rlsk; interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Fifiaficial instruments affected by market risk include
Borrowinigs, Investients, other receivables, trade and other payables and derivative. financial instruments,

Within the varlous methodologies to analyse and manage risk, Company has imiplemented a systemn based on “sensifivity analysis” on symmetric
basis. This tool enables the risk managers to identify the risk positien of the-entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximaté quantification
of the exposure in the event that certain specified parameters were to be met under a specific set of assumptions, The risk estimates provided
here assume:

- a parallel shift of 25-basis points of the interest rate yleld curves in all currencies

- a simultaneous, paratlel foreign exchange rates shift in which the INR appreciates / depreciates against alt currencies by 2%

The patential economic impact, dué to these assumptions; is based on the occurrence of adverse / Inverse market conditions and reflects
estimated changes resulting from the sensitivity analysis. Actual results that dre included in the Statement of profit. & loss may differ materially
from these estimates due to actual developments in the global financial markets,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variablés on the carrying values of gratuity and provisions.

The fojlowing assumption has been made in caleulating the sensitivity analyses:

- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on.
the financial assets and financial liabilitiés held at March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015,

interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financiat assets and labillities to changes in market rates of intefest. The Comparny seeks to
mitigatesuch fisk by entering into interest rate derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps. Interest rate swap agreements are
used to adjust the proportion of total debt, that are subject to variable and fixed interest rates,

Under an interest raté swap agreement, thé Company either agrees to pay an amount equal to a specified fixed-rate of interest times a notional
principal amount, and to-receive in return an amount equal to a specified variable-rate of interest times the same notional principal amount or,
vice-versa, to receive a fixed-rate amount and to pay a varable-rate amount. The rigtional amounits of the contracts are fot exchanged. No.other
cash payments. are made ‘'unless the. agreement is tefminated prior to maturity, in which case the amount paid 'or received In settlement Is
established by agreement at:the time of termination, and. usually représénts the net present.value; at current rates of interest; of the remaining
phiigations to exchange payments under the terms of the contract.

Interest rate sensitivity
The folloiwing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably pessible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings
affected. With all ‘other variables held constant, the Campany’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on flpating rate horrowirigs, as
follows:
Effect on loss beforetax
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{INR in Mifllion)  (INR in Miftion)
Increase in 25 basis point ) {25.29) {25.28)
Decrease in-25 basis point 25.29 25.48

The.effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis,

Forgign Currency Risk .
Foreign currenty risk is the fisk that the fair value or future cash flows of-an exposure will fluctudte because of changes in foreign exchange

rates. The Company transacts. business in focal currericy and in foreign currency, primarily in USD. The Company has obtained foreign currency
loans and is, therefore, exposed to foreign excliangé risk, THe Company may use foreign exchange options towards hedging risk resisiting from
changes and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange raté: These foreign exchange contracts, cerried at fair value, may have'.\rar\{‘mg maturities
varying depending upan the primary host contract requirements and risk management étr-'ategy of the.company.

The Company manages Its forelgn currency risk by hedging appropriate percentage of its foreign currency exposure, as approved by Board as per’




Rohtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limited
iNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(b}

{c)

35

Foreign eurrency sensitivity

As per the Company's policy, exchange rate differences of long-term foreign cusrency loans which are related to acquls;tlon of depreciable fixed
assets have heen added t¢ or dedutted from the cost-of the assets and depreciated overthe balance [ife of the assets, Accordingly, the change
inUSD rate is-not impacted directly on loss before tax and pre-tax equity for the year ending March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 and accordingly
sensitivity analysis of change in USD rate has not been presented.

Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk that a counterparty will ot meet its ohligations under @ financial Instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss, The Company is not exposed to credit risk from its. operating activities as the company Is collectifig toll in cash and does not have
outstanding any receivableés.. However; the-company is exposed to credit risk related to financing activities, including. temporary investment in
mutua! fund and other finaniial Instruments, G

F]nanclal instruments and Tempurary Enuestment i Mutua! Fund

Credit risk from. balances with banks and firancial institutions is managed by the Company's firdnce department in accordance with the
Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only in gccordance with company policy, The Company monitors the ratings, credit
spreads and financiat strength of its counterparties, Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its BXpOsSULe to
various counterparties, The Company's maximum exposure %o credit risk for the components of the Balance sheet as of March 31,2017 is INR
E3.41million, March 31, 2016 is INR £8.57 miilion and April 1, 2015 is {NR 493.65 million..

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the.Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimium levels of quuitiit'y to meet its cash and collateral
requiremients, The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of
financing including debt at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profite of the Company’s financlal liabifities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
{INR In Mililan)

Particulars Total Amount On Demand upto 1 yedr '1-2 years 2 -5 years > 5 years

As at March 31, 2017
Non current borrowings# 1011411 - 101.25 222.80 3,553,73 6,236.34
Cusrent borrowings 961.00 951,00 - - - -
Trade Payahles 2B.05 - 28.05 - } - -
Other Financial LiabilitiesH 8,570.82 - 411.97 - 694.70 7,464.15
Total 19,673.98 ' 961.00 541,27 222.80 4,248,43 13,700.49
As at March 31, 2016
Non current horrowingst 10,191.32 - 11,85 101,25 3,291.06 6,787.16
Current horrowings 55530 555,30 R - - -
Trade Payables 21.15 - 21.15 - - -
Other Financial Liabiiities# 7,683.99 - . 175.22 . AB.30 445,40 6,975,07
Total 18,451.76 555,30 208.22 189,55 3,736.46: 13,762.23
As at April 01, 2015 ‘
Non current borrowings# 10,045,78 - = 11.85 2,898.958, 7,138.94
Curenit borrowings 555,30 555.30 - - - -
Trade Payables 14,51 - 14.51 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities# 6,923.01 - 92.26 10.00 235.60 6,545.15
Tatal 17,542.60 ' 555,30 106.77 21.B5 . 3,134.58 13,724.09

¥ Current maturity of Non-current borrowlings is mcluded and Unamortised Processing fees excludéd from above Non Current borrowmg

Derivative instruments:
Derjvative outstanding as at the reporting date

As at Marchi 31,  As at March 31,

Nature of instrument As at April 1, 2015

2017 2016
Swap contract- Interest Swap '
Notional amount of USD Milliens 6.11 B.60 11.07
Notional amount of INR Millions 396.04 570,60 692.81
Option contracts.to buy
Wotional amount of USD Millions 43,90 46,4% 48,90
Notional amount of INR Millions 351.19 : 37146 391.19

The Commpary has entered into. Dptian contract over the borrowing terms for hedging foreign currency exchange risk: againsi extesnal

Commerclal borrewings. The company has also entered into Swap contract to hedge interest rate fiuctuation over a horrowing terms.
Derwatlve Fnancial instruments siech-as foreign exchange forward contracts are used for hedging purposes and nat as tradlng or speculatwe
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40 Capital Management

Far the purpose of the Company's capital management, Capital consist of share. capital, Securities Premium, Other equity in form of Subordinate
Debtand all otherreserves attributable o the equity holdars of the Company.

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to énsure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to i in light of changes in economic conditions aor its business requirements.
Ta maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharerolders, return capital to sharehoiders, issué
new shares or obtained.additional sub-ordinate debts. The Company monitors caplital usirig debit equity ratio which does not exceed 4.80:1,

which is total borrowings divided by total equity excluding balance of deficit in statement of profit & toss.

“The key performance ratios as at 31 March afe as follows
: March 31,2017  March 31, 2016 April1, 2015
[INR In Mitllon)  {INR In Milfion)  (INR in Milllon)

Non Current Bosrowings® (refer note 14} 10,035.03 10,093.93 9,934.07
Current borrowings {refer note 15) 961,00 555.30 ‘ 555,30
Total Debts - A 10,996.03 10,649.23 10,489.37
Equity Share Capital (refer note 12) 2186 21.86 21.86
Other Equity (refer note 13) [2,373.08), (750.18} F71.90
Add: Deficit In statement of profit and loss account (refer note 13) 4,?77.96 3,195.12 1,633.04
Toial Equity - B 2,426.80 . 2,426.80 2,426.80
Deht equity ratio (A/B) 453 439 4.32

* ion-current borrowings includes current maturities of non-currént borrawings which has been classified under other current financial
liabilities and the effect of transaction cost paid to lenders on Upfront'basis included in non-cutrent borrowings.
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Disclosure pursuant to Appendix - A to Ind AS11- " Service Concession Arrangements"

Description and classification of the arrangement

The Company has entered into Service Concession Agreement {'SCA'} with Mational Highway Authority of India (NHAI} dated March 09,
2010 for the purpose of four lzning of Rohtak -Panipat section from Km 63.30 of NH-10 to Km 83.50 on MH-1in the state of Haryana on
Design, Built, Finarice, Cperate and Transfer {DBFOT} basis. The Concession peried is of 25 years including construction period of 910
days. The Company obtained completion certificate on 6th lanuary, 2014 ffom NHAIL

Significant Terms of the arrangements

Revision of Feas:

Fees shall be revised annually on Aprit 01 subject to the prowsmns of the National Highways Fee (Determlnatlon of Rates and Collection)
Rules, 2008,

Modification of Concession Period:

The Concession period shall be modified:

iF Actual Average Traffic falls short of Target Traffic by more than 2.5%, the-concessian period shall be inéreased by 1.5% theréof for every

1% shartfall, but not more than 20% of the concession period. _
{f Actual Avérage Traffic exceeds Target Traffic by miore than 2.5%, the concession period shall be retluced by 0,75% thereof for every 1%

increase, hut not mote than 10% &f the concession period:

If the avérage dally traffic exceeds the designed capacity of the project highway, the concassion period shall be extended [nof mare than
5 years) in such a way s07as ta enablé the concessionaire to yieid Equity (AR of 18% p.a with an assumption of debt equity ratio of 70:30

If the additional tollway has been constructed, either the concession period shalf be extended or compénsation has been granted.

The concessionaire shall pay Additional Concession fees of INR 450,00 Million far each year of cohcession period out of the gross revénue
of the project as share of Authority from COD, Premfum shali be determined by increasing the amount pf premiur in tha respectlve year
by an additiona! 5% a§ compared {o preceding year,

Authority (NHAI) has granted deferment 6f Premium payable to NHAI as per-the deferment schedule upto year 2026-27 and entire
premium'payable before end of one year from end of concession period

In case of material default or breach of agreement by NHA! which causes suspension of or reduction in collection of Fees, itshall pay to:
the Concessicnalre, the compénsation for consequence of such material default or extend the concession period. -

If, due to change in the law, company suffers an increase in cast or reductipn in net after-tax return or the othiei financial burden subject
ta the limits specified in the SCA, the 5CA shall be modified in such.a way that it nullifies such impact of cost Increase, reduction in return
or other financial burden. However if no such modification is dona; Company may require by hatlce to the atithority ta pay ap amount
that would place the company in the same financial position that it would have enjoyed, had there been no such chanige in the faw. Any
dispute inthe said procedure shall be settled in.accordance with the Dispute Resofution Procedure, Oppostte will be the case, in case 6f
reduction in cast:

Rights of the Company to use Project Highway’

To demand, collect and appropriate, Fee from vehicles and Users liable for payment of Fee far using the Project Highway or any part
thereof and refyse entry of any vehicle if the Fee due is not paid.

Right of Way, access and licence tc the Sie,

Obligation of the Company

The Concessionaire shall not assign; transfer or sublet or create any lien or Encurbrance on the SCA, or the Copcessionh granted oran the
whole or any part of the Praject Highway nor transfer, lease or part possession thereof, save and except as expressly permitted by SCA or
the Substitution Agreement, The project highway medns site comprising the existing road compsising from KM 63,30 6f NH-10 to XM
83,50 of NH-1 and ali Project asset, and its subsequent deveiopment and augmentation' in accjcirdance with the §CA,

The Concessicnaire is under obligation to carry out the routinie and periodic maintenance of Project Highway as per Schedile K of the

Details of any assets to be given of taken at the end of concession perlod
Atthe end of the Concession period the campanly shall deliver thie actual or constructive: possession of the Projett Hi_ghwa\,r, free and
clear of alt encumbrances.

Details of Termination _ _
5CA can be terminated on account of default of the coripany or NHAI Inthe circumistances as specified under article 37 of the 5CA.

" There has bean no change in the concession arrangement during the year,

Below i5 details of revenue and Lass recognised in the year March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016.0n exchange of construction services for
intangible assets

The Coritpany has recognised revenue of INR 908,42 million {March 31, 2016: INR 805.00 millicn} o operation of toll road in foiri of Tol?
callection from users. Thi Company recognised loss of NR 1,582.77 million {March31, 2016: INR 1,562.22 miliion) an operation-of tofl
road.
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42 First time adoption of IND AS .
These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March, 2017 are the first Ind AS financial statements, the company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. For periods upfo-and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the company prepared its financial statements in
accerdanice with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 read with paragraph 7 of the companies
(Account) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP),

Accardingly, the company has prepared financial statements, which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March, 2017
together with the comparative period tata as at-and far the year ended 31 Mazrch 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. I preparing these financial statements, the Company ‘s opening balance sheet as prepared as at 1st April, 2015, the company's date of
transition to Ind AS, This note explains the principle adjustments made by the company in restating its Previous:GAAP financial statements
including the balance sheet as at 1st April 2015, and the previously published Previcus GAAP financial statements as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2G16.

A Exemptions applied

ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” allows first-time adopter certain exemptions from the retrospective
application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the foliowing exefmptions:

Ind AS optional exemptions

a. Deemed rost, )

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect and continue with the carrying vaiue for all of its Property, Plant Equipments and Investmerit
property as recognised in the financial statements as at the date 6f transition to Ind AS; measured as per the previcus GAAP and use that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition. '

Accordingly, since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its

Property, Plant Equipments and [nvestment property, as recognised in its Previous GAAP financials, as deemed cost at the transition date.

b. Revenue based amottization of Tol! Collection Rights

Ind. AS 101 permits a first time adopter to continue policy adoptéd for amortization of Tolf Collection Rights arising from service concession
arrangements related to toll roads recognised in the financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning-of the first — w
‘Ind AS fihandiat reporting period as per'the previous GAAP, ) 3
Accordingly, the company has elected to tontinue with the Revenue based amartisation method prescribed under Schedule II'to the Companies
Act, 2013 for toll collection rights recognised under-service concession afrangements, as per policy adopted by the company in the previous
GAAP.

¢. Long Term Foreign Currency Monetary Items

The C'ompan\,_f has elected ta avail éxemption under Ind AS 101 1o continue the policy adopted for accounting for éxchange differences arising
from translation of long-term foreign cUrrenhcy monetary items outstanding and recognised In the financial statements for the period ending
immediately before the beginning of the first ind AS financial reporting periad as per the previous GAAP,

ind AS mandatory exceptions

a, Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in,
actordance with previous GAAP, unless there is objectiva evidance that those estimates were In'error,

b. Classification and measurément of financial assets

Ind AS 101 réquires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist
at the date of transition to Ind AS.

g Recenciliation between Previous GAAP and ind AS

ind A5 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flaws for prior periods, The follswing tables fepresent
the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS:

a. Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016 & April 1,2015

o

Particulars " Note March 31, 2016 April 1,2015
_ No. {INRIn Million)  (INR In Millicin}
Etjuity under previcus GAAP ' A {2,079.03) " {953.00)
Equjty Component of Financiaf Instrument ¥ 2,209.06 2,209.06
Finance tost on account of amortised cost of financial liability i {41.20) {22.8.9)
Reversal of major maintenance provision of‘account of discounting 133,05 78.87
Discounting/unwinding of liability / provision . i {1,358.62) (710.54)
Remeasurement of intangible asset ju- 311.68 164,20
Impact of fair valuation of financial instruments. v 56.74 28.06
Total Ind AS Adjustments B 1,310.71 1,786.76
‘Equity as-per Ind AS ' C=A+B i {768.32) 793,76

SN,
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b, Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2016

Particulars Note’ March 31, 2016
No {INR [n Million}
Profit after tax as per Previous GAAP. ' {1,126.03}
Adjustments as per Ind AS _
Recognition-of Finance cost on account of amertised cost of financial liability ii {18.31)
Reversal of major maintendnce provision on account of discounting 54.18
Discounting/unwinding of fiability / provision Hii- (648.08)
_._Reversal of amortisation intangible assets ) ; N . 14748
"‘I‘r'n'p';i.&'Df'féi‘r'\"."all-ua"ticlnn of Finandlal lnstedments © o ' R B P - R 1:)
Reclassification of Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans to OC ) Vi o {0.13)
Profit after tax as per Ind AS- ' {1,562.21)
Other Comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains / {Josses) on defined benefit plans ) Vi, 0.13
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS - _ (1,562.08)
Impact of Ind AS adoption o statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2016 {(INR In Milllon)
Particulars’ Previous GAAP Adjustrments fnd AS
Net Cash Fibws from Operating Activities 633.40 43.32 676.72
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 3162 - 31,62
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities {1,075.30) (43.32) {1,122.62)
Net { Decrease } in cash and cash equivalents (414.28) “ (414.28)
Cash angd tash equivalents as at April 01, 2015 482.85 - 482 .85
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2016 68.57 s 68.57

Footnotes to the reconciliation of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 and equity as at April 01, 2015 and March 31, 2016 :

I, Equity Compaonent of Financlal Instrument .

Under previous GAAR, Sub-debts {oan received fram promotors as promoter's contributions disclosed under long term bomowings. Under Ind
AS, the Interest free sub-debts lean as promoter's contributions considered as equity component aof campound firaneial instrument and
glassified as other equity based on terms of contract.

ii, Finance cost recognition on account of amortiséd cost of financial liability:

Under Previous ‘GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised upfront and charged to profit or loss /
capitalized In the intangible assets. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included i the initizl recognition amount of financial liabifity and
charged to prafit of foss using the effective intérest methad,

ifi. Discounting f unwinding of Habtlity / Provision:
Under the previous GAAP, the provision of Major Maintenance expenses and the premium obligation payable to gavernment authorities were
recoghised onh undiscounted basis in the intangible assets; As required under Ind AS, the same have been recognised an discounted. basis.

Iv. Reversal of amortisation of intangible assets:
The transition impact of discounting of premium obligation and transaction rost, of borrowing has resulis adjustment of intangible assets and
reserve.

v. Imipact of fair valuation of Financfal Instruments

Under previous GAAP, the net mark to mérket lasses on derivative financial instruments, other than those desighated as cash flow hedges, as at
the Balance Sheet date, were recognlsed in profit and loss, and the net gains, if any;, were ignored. Under Ind AS, such: derivative nanciel
instruments are to be recogrilsed at fair value and the movement Is recognised in the statément of Profit-and Loss.

vi. Re-measurement gain / loss an defined benefit plan

Under ind AS, re-measurement [.e. actuarial gain loss excluding amounts included in'the pet interest expense on the net defined benefit liability
are recagnised in other comprehensive income instead of peofit or loss, Under the previous GAAP, these re-measurement were. forming part of
the profit or lass far thie year.

vii. Other comprehensive Income

Under ind AS, all items of income and expense recagnlsed in a period should be included ‘in profit or foss for the period, unléss a standard
requires or permits otherwise. ftem of income and expense that are ot recognised In profit or loss but are shown in the Statement of profit
and !oss as "other comgrehensive income" incluedes resmeasurement of defined beneflf plans, The concept of other comprehensive. income did
not exist under previous GAAP,
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Standards issued hut riot yet effective .
The standard issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements s disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt this standard when it becomes effective.

Amendment to Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of cash flows’: ]
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Iridian Accounting Standards) (Amendments} Rufes,- 2017 in March 2017, notifying
afmendments to Ind AS 7, 'Statement of cash flows' . The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to pirovide disclosures that enable users
of £nancial statements to evaluate changes In fiabilities arfsing from financing-activities, including both changes arising from cash fiows and non-
cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between théopening and tlosing balatices in the balance sheet for liabifities arising from
fmancmg activities, to meet the disclosure requu‘emer\t
This standard will cme nto foree frorm accounting perlod cormencing on or sfter 1. April 2017, The Cornpany wifl adnpt the new standard on
the required effective date. The company Is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is-being
evaluated,
Disclosure of Specified Bank Notes {SBNSs):-
During the year company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the IMCA notification G.5.R. 308(E) dated March
31, 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes {SBN) held and fransacted during the petiod from Novembér 8, 2015 to December 30, 2016. The
denomination wise SBNs and other notas as per the notification is given below:

{Amount in INR}

. Other
i Specified Bank .
Particular ; Denominatjon Total
Notes {5BNs]* . R
o Notes & coins

Closing Cash in hand as on November 8; 2016 2,772,500 848,444 3,620,944
Add: Permitted Recelpt 18,913,500 34,981,974 53,895,474
Less: Permitted Payments - {95,914). {95,514}
Less; amount deposited in Banks {21,686,000) (33,110,770} (54,796,770}
Closing Cash in hand as oa De:ember 30, 2015 - 2,623,724 2,623,734

¥ For the purposes of this clouse, the term “Specified Bank Notes” sholf have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Govemmentof
india, in the Ministry.of Findnce, Department of Economic Affoirs number 5.0. 3407(€), doted the 8th November, 2015,

© TH& company has accumulated losses of INR 4,777.96 Million {March 31, 2016! (NR 3,195:12 Mifliori and April 1, 2015¢ INR 1,633.04 miilion} as

at the March 31,2017 , which have resuited in arosion of the company's net worth, although Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited, the holding
company, Sponsors of the Cempariy's project, has'invested INR 2,205.06 Million as sub ordinate debt which is part of the Projact Equity Capltal=
as per terms of the Rugee Facility Agreement {Lodn Agreement). The Company has been able to meet its obligations in the ordinary course of
the business complimented by the continuing financial suppert offered from Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited (the Holding Company).
The Spoisors vz, Sadbhav infrastructure Project Limited and Sadbhav Engineering Limited have alsd. entéred into undertaking to support the
Company for cost averrun 2nd shartfalt in cash flow. Accardingly, these financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company
will contihue a5 a going concern. ‘

During the pervious year; there was-a social unrest in the State of Haryana, which caused some damages to Company’s Toll assets Including loss
of toll operations far few days from February 17 to 26, 2016. The damages to assets lincluding cost of replacement) amounting to. INR 47,96
miilicn (previous year: INR 6.09 million and cash loss of INR 0.58 million) has been charged off in the statement of profit and loss under Repairs
and maintepance and Loss of assets Including cash balances respectively. Agalnst abave- loss, theé Company has filled insurance claim with
Insurance company for compensation of the damages to assets and towards estimated loss of revenue. during the.unrest period, however, the
process is under progress as at reporting date. ' :

Previous yeay figures:
Previous yead figures have been regrouped/reciassified wherever necessary, to facilitate comparabllity with cutrent year's classification,

As per our rgpott bf even date
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